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Independent Auditors Repart

To the Members of Rare Hospitality and Services Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Rare Hospitality and Services Private Limited (the
“Company”) which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the statement of profit and loss
(including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including materiai accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

aforesaid financial.statements. give-the-information-required-by-the-Companies-Aet:-2043-(AGE)-A-the — oo

manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its profit and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10} of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibifities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibiities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises Lhe information included in the Company’s directors’ report, but does not include
‘the financial statements and auditor's report(s) thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of ageurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
“'and, in doing so, corisider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

. The Company’'s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section

134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
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Rare Hospitality and Services Private Limited

safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other

iregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate

internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of

the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
. atrue and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Soard of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are

=free-frorrmateratmisstatenramt  wWhesther d i U o e o S o TSI a T S UHits T S P a P INar e

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individuaily or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken -on the basis of

these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We aiso:

* - lidentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controi.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant tothe audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

-.m....Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the guin.g CUTICE It
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,

whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

~e o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in 2 manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all refationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Rare Hospitality and Services Private Limited

safeguards.

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and cbtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢. The balance sheet, the staterhent of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the

statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows deall with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d. Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

e. Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors between 31 March 25 and
21 April 25 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31 March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rufe 11 of
the Companies {(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2025 on its financial
posilivn in its financial statements - Refer Note 31 to the financlal statements.,

b, The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeabie losses. _
_¢. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred fo the Investor Education and
Prolection Fund by the Company.

. d.(i) The management of the Company has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persen(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate

- Beneficiaries. : : '

(i} The management of the Company represented that, to the best of knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
{(*Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the

-Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties {"Ultimate Beneficlarles™ or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries.

(iify Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Rare Hospitality and Services Private Limited

circumsfances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i} of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

€. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

f. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a fealure of recording audit trail (edit log)
- facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in
the software. Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit
trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company

as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
public company. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the

of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us. -
ForBSR&Co.LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No..101248WAA-100022

A5 L/

Amrit Bhansali

_ Partner
Place: Bengaluru ' Membership No.: 065155
Date: 29 April 2025 -~ ICAI UDIN:25065155BMLBXC1706
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BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Rare Hospitality and Services Private Limited for the year ended 31 March

2025

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (@) (A) The Company has maintained proper recerds showing full particulars, including quantitative

®)
(i) b}

©

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in
a phased manner over a period of two years. In accordance with this programme, certain
property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. No discrepancies were neticed on such verification.

d

(e)

(i} (a}

the Com_pany is the lessee and the Ieases agreements are duly executed in favour of the
fessee). Accordingly, clause 3(i}{c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory, has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the

" physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class

(b)

of inventory

According Lo the informalion and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the
Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account

ol the Company.

(i)

iy

(v)

(vi)

.. According to the information and exblanations given to us and on the basis of our examination '

of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or security or granted any leans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or

‘unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.

Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a) to 3{iii)() of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given
toans or provided guarantee or security and therefore the relevant provisions of Sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly,
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable. '

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be depoeits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Rare Hospitality and Services Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025 (Continued)

{vii) {a)

prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi} of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST. :

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our apinfon, the undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs
or Cess or other statutory dues have generally been regularly-deposited by the Company with
the appropriate authorities, though there have been slight delays in a few cases of Provident
Fund and Employee State Insurance.

According to the informalion and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Campany, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service

Tax.-Provident-Fund.-Employees-State-insurance-Income-Tax~Duty-of-Customs-or-Cess-or

&)

other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable. '

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory
dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of the Nature of Amount Period to Forum where | Remarks
statute the dues (Rs. in which the dispute is , if any
million)* amount pending
relates
income Tax, | Disallowan | 12.90 2020-21 CIT (Appeals),
1961 ce of PF Mumbai
and ES! ‘
mcome  Tax, | Order u/s | 2.2 201314 CIT (Appeais),
1961 271(1) (o) Mumbai
| stating
additions
1o LTCG
Income Tax, | Disallowan | 0.21 2021-22 CIT (Appeals),
1961 ce of PF Mumbai
and ESI

*An amount of Rs. 2.20 million is paid under Protest.

(X))

4

(b)

“According to the information ahd explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest-thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
of Rare Hospitality and Services Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025 (Continued)

©

(d

&

)

of the records of the Company, the Company has. not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on shor’t term basis have
been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2025, Accordingly, clause 3(|x)(e) is not
applicable.
The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2025. Accordingly, clause 3(x) () is not
applicable.

®) (@)
(b)

() (a)
®)

(©

(xif)

(xiii)

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x){a) of the Crder is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the recerds of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
piacement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x}{b) of the Order is not applicable.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company and according
to the information and expianations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies {(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. '

Based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does not have a vigil
mechanism and is not required to have a vigil mechanism as per the Act or SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not 2 Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii} of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a private limited company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by
the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and

(xiv) (a)
{b)
(xv)

© (xvi) (a)

-according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
188 of the Acl where applicable and delails of such lransaclions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion and based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does
not have an Internal Audit system and is not required to have an Internal audit system as per:

~Section 138 of the Act.

tn our apinion and based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does
not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per
Section 138 of the Act. Accordingly, clause 3(xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has

- not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors

and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.
The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of india
' . Page7of 10
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Annexure A to the independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Rare Hospitality and Services Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025 (Continued)

(b)

{c)

(d)

(xvii)

{xviii}

(xix)

Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3{xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company {CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Group (as per the provisions
of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not have any CIC.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,

(xx)

ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this i$ not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up
to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable fo the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartergd Accountants

Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Amrit Bhansali
Partner

Place: Bengaluru , Membership No.: 065155
v Dater. 20 AP 2026 .o i ICALUDIN:25085155BMLBXC 1706
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the financial statements
of Rare Hospitality and Services Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f} under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Rare Hospitality
and Services Private Limited (“the Company”} as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequale inlernal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31

established by the Company considering the essential components of internai control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of
Chartered Accountants of india {the “Guidance Note”).

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company cansidering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financiat controle with reference to

financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note roquire that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to. financial

statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material

respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of

. internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of

internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material

--weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control

based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

at,

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
' Page 9 of 10
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the financial statements
of Rare Hospitality and Services Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025 (Continued)

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controfs with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generaily accopted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that couid have a material effect on the financial statements.

- Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements

due.to.erroror.fraud-may-occur-and-not-be-detected.-Also.-projections-of any-evaiuation-of-the-internal

financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

el

Amrit Bhansali

Pariner
" Place: Bangaluru Membership No.: 0656166
Pate:-29-April-2025 ICAI-UDIN:25065155BMLBXC1706

" Page 10 of 10



Group Enterprises

% AMarket Leaderin |

Security, Cash Logistics
& Facility Management

N B RITALITY _
An BiS Group Enterprise

RARE HOSPITALITY AND SERVICES
PRIVATE LIMITED
'CIN: U15100MH1994PTC079910

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FY 2024-25



Rare Hospitality and Services Private Limited

All in INR million except share data
Balance Sheet

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

--Ag per-our report of even date

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration. No. 101248W/W-100022

2

it Bhansali
Partner
Membership No. 065155

Place: Bangalore
Date: April 29, 2025

For and-on behalf of the Board of Directors

tna Sinha
Director
{DIN: 06379829)

Place: New Delhi
Date: April 28, 2025

{DIN: 07585509)

Place: New Dethi
Date: April 28, 2023

Particulars Note No. As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
A [ASSETS
Non - current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 204.01 24314
Other intangible assets 5 0.07 0.09
Intangible assets under development 5 2.22 -
Financial assets
(i} Investments 6 0.03 0.03
(i) Other financial assets 7 59.15 18.04
Deferred tax assets (net) 8 75.99 71.22
Ircome tax asscts {net) 3 46.25 51.63
Other non — current assets 9 035 0.05
Total non — current assets 388.07 384,20
Current assets
Inventories 10 0.27 248
Financizal assets
{i) Trade receivables 11 353.19 331.24
(it} Cash and cash equivalents 12 6.18 8.32
(iii) Baonk bolances other than (ji) above 12 024 1.84
(iv) Other financial assets 7 144.25 145,62
Other current assets g $2.04 12N W
Total current assets 566.17 527.30
Total assets 954.24 911.50
B |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share caprtal 13 11.69 11.69
Other equity 14 186.02 139.43
Total equity 197.71 151.12
Liabilities
Non — current liahilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 9.65 322
(ia) Lease liabilities 16 137.65 183.73
Provisions 20 85.35 73.52
Total non-current liabilitics 232.65 262.47
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities :
(1) Bomowings 15 158.19 174,58
(ia) Lease liabilities 16 47.46 39.30
(ii) Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 17 1.86 2.28
. (b) Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
Enzall CItCIPrises § r 17 2124 26.84
{iif) Other current financial liabilities - 18- 172.40 139.07
|Other curent liabilities. i L2 e Y 7 1
Provisions 20 76.40 71.84
Total current Hab(lities 523.88 497.91
Total liabilities 756.53 760.38
‘Fotal equity and liahilities 954.24 911.50
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Statement of Profit and Loss

Year ended
S Ne |Particulars Neote Neo.
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income
] a) Revenuc from operations 22 1,846.35 1,681.88
by  Other incame 23 391 3.71
c) Other gainf{loss) 23a 2.15 0.04
Total Income (a +b) 1,852.41 1,685.63
Expenses
a) {Cost of materials consumed 24 §1.38 59.62
B} Changes in inventory 5 221 0.83
2 ¢)  Employee benefits expense ) 26 1,495.22 1,423.14
d) Finance costs 27 48.37 28.57
o) Depreciulion und winorlizulion uxpenses 28 5510 28.41
f)  Other expenses 29 131.68 114.04
Total expenses (a+b+c+d+e+f) 1,814.26 / 1,664.61
3 |Profit before tax and exceptional items (1-2) 38.15 21.02
4 [Exceptional items - <
5 |Profit before tax (3+4) 38.15 21.02
6 |lax expense
4) Current tax 8 ] - -
...... b)..:Deferred-tax At st st s B s asscnsssssposssinssonsssns { SO L} el 7,50
Total tax expense (5.01) 17.59
7 |Profit for the year (5-6) 43.16 3.43
8 [Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
a) Re-measurement of defined benefits plan 26 0.97 (1.19)
b) Income tax relating to these items g : (0.24) 0.30
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (net of taxes) 0.73 - (0.89)
9 | Total comprehensive income for the year (7+8) 43.89 2.54
16 |Earnings per share (EPS} (face value INR 10 per sharc) 30
{a) Basic(INR) 36.91 2.93
(b) Diluted (INR) 36.91 2.93
11 |Weighted average equity shares used in computing eamings per equity share 30
(a) Basic(Nos) 11,69,213 11,69,213
{b) Diluted {Nos.) 11,69,213 11,69,213

The zccompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date
"ForBSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountanis

.. Firm Registration. No, AO1248W/WRT00022 ... oo
Amrit Bhansali g Rt Biinha ard Anmbrosc Dioiza

Lr
/&M’M e
Partner Director Director

Membership No. 065155 {DIN: (6379829) ~ {DIN: 07585509)

Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
Date: April 28, 2025 Date: April 28, 2025

Place: Bangalore
Date: April 29, 2025
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Statement of Changes in Equity

A. Equity Share Capital
Year ended March 31, 2024

Ch in Equity Sh.
Particulars Ralance as at Cap?ﬂl:!;;i:ento ?)::?; pe?':: d R:t::lei::il: : i Changes during] Balance as at
o] : "
April 1,2023 errors 2023 the year March 31, 2024
Equity Share Capital 11.69 - 11.69 - 11.69
Year ended March 31, 2025
Particulars Balance as at . C‘;:;:fzz:;fz‘:;ﬁ F:::_:: 4 R:th::»is:il;’:w Changes during| Balance as at
. r
April 1,2024 errors 2024 the year March 31, 2025
Fanity Share Capital 11.R/% - 11.69 - 11.69
B, Other Egulty
Year ended March 31, 2024
Reserves and Surplus
Equity
. . Total Other
Particulars Securities General Retained | contribution by Equity
premium reserve earnings Parent
As at April 1,2023 68.31 5.00 58.25 .19 133.85
T T S—— - SR A — —_—
Other comprehensive incorme / (loss) - - (0.89) - (0.89)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - 2.54 - 254
Fair value adjustment of corparate guarantee provided by parent| - - - - 3.04 3.04
As at March 31,2024 68.31 5.00 60.79 533 139.43
Year ended March 31, 2025
Reserves and Surplus "
. Equity TFotal Other
Particulars Securities General Retained contrl by Equity
premium reserve earnings Parent
As at April 1, 2024 68.31 5.00 60.79 5.33 139.43
Protit / (loss) for the year - - 43.16 - 43.16
Othcr comprehensive income / {loss) - - 0.73 - 0.73
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - 43.89 - 43.89
Fair value adjustment of corporate guarantee provided by parent - - - 2.70 2.70
As ai March 31,2025 o Y 681 500 14.68 am 186.02
 The accompanying notes form an infcgral part of these financial statemients.
As per our report of even date
ForBSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
~ Chattered Acconndants Fsioiaiusesostoritiu et eRrh it ateotui vt
__Firm Registration, No. 101248W/W-100022 i ~
e ) st

/ﬁ@w # L‘V
Amrit Bhansali

Partner
Membership No. 065155

Place: Bangalore
Date: April 29, 2025

Director
(DIN: 06379829)

Place: New Delhi

aina Sirﬂm/

Date: April 28, 2025

Ed
Director
(DIN: 07585509)

(_7

Place: New Delhi

rd Ambrose Dsouza

Date: April 28, 2025
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Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended
8 No |Particulars
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
A. |CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 38,15 21.02
Adjusted for: : ]
Depreciation and amortization expenses 55.40 28.41
Finance costs 48.37 28.57
Interest income (3.91) 3.7
Allowance for expected credit loss 9.00 6.75
Operating profit / {Joss) before worldng capital changes 147.01 §1.04
Movement in working capital: )
Decrease / (increase) in trade reccivables {30.95) 4,68
Drecrease / (increase) in inveatories ) 2.2 0.84
Deercuse / (increase) in other curretit agsets {6.76) 522
Degerease / (increase) in other current financial assets 195 (41.00)
(Decrease) / increase in irade payables (6.02) 5.55
{Decrease) / increase in provisions ) 17.36 (.87
(Decrease) / increase in other current liabilities 231 (7.08)
(Decrease) / increase in other current financial liabilities 32.55 15.71
Decrease / {increase) in other non-current financial assets 0.31 3.35
Cash {used in) / generated from operations 159,97 69.18
ADirectiax. (nmd\ net.of refunds, T 0 | s (13 ﬁ?) A (.'Ii 28)]-
Net cash inflow / (ontflow) fram operating activities 145.44 53.30
B. |CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES )
Purchase of Property, plant & equipment and intangible assets (including Capital work in
progresy/intangible assets under development) (16.39) (14.61)
Investment in of fixed deposits (113.20) {4.47)
Redemption of fixed deposits 73.91 0.64
Interest received 2.80 110
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from iavesting activities . {52.88) (15.34)
C. |CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ’
Proceeds from term loans 13.02 10.12
Repayment of term loans (11.95) (7.64)
[ntcrest paid (23.86) (24.29)
Payment of lease liabilities (58.86) (10.23)
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from financing activities (81.65) (32.04)
D. [Netincrease / (decrease) in cash and cash equivaients (A+B+C) 10.91 5.92
E. |Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (156.03) (161.95)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (D+E) {145.12) (156.03)
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the statement of the cash flows
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following: .. ... . - it . Mareh 31,2025 ... March 31, 2024
Cash and cash equivalents 6.18 8.32
Cash credit (151.30) (164.35)
|- o] Balances-as per statement of cash flows e e o (145:12) (ABGOIY|--r o
- Refer note 35 for reconmhanon of habllltles whose cash ﬂow movements are: dxsclosed as part Of ﬁnancmg actlv:t:es in the statement of cash flows
- Theaccompanylngﬂotcsfonn’anmtcgraE’part’of'these*ﬁnanctal’statements. '
As per our report of even date )
For BSR & Co. LLILP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration. No. 101248W/W-100022 -
~Amirit Bhansali tna Smha * " Edward Ambrose Dsouza

Director Director

Partmer

Membership No. 065155

Place: Bangalore
Date: April 29, 2025

(DIN: 06379829}

Place: New Delhi
Date: April 28, 2025

(DIN: 07585509)

Place: New Deliti
Date: April 28, 2025
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Neies to the financial statements

1. Company overview
RARE Hospitality and Services Private Limited (“the Company™) is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in India. The Company

was incorporated on 28" July 1994. During the year ended March 31 2024, the registered office of the Company was shifted from 10, Aishwarya Tower,
Ground Floor, CST Road, Kalina, Santcruz — East, Mumbai - 400098, India to the new premises at B-307, Kanakia Wallstreet Andheri Kurla Road,
Andheri (E} Mumbai , Mumbai - 400093, India,

The Company is engaged in the business of providing facility management services across industry verticats,
These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on April 28, 2025,

2, Basis of preparntion / meusaremend and Muderial secounling policies
This note provides a list of material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial staternents.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Companies Act™). The Ind-AS are notified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards}

Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR} and are rounded off to the nearest millions {*Mn”) except per share data and unless stated

~=~ptherwise=Buetoroundingoffythenumberspresented-throitghontthe-document may-notadd-up-precisely-torthe-totals-and-percentages may not-precigely-s=ssss

reffect the absolute figures. The figures which are appearing as *0’are result of rounding off.

2.2 Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual and going concern basis, except for the items where the

relevant Ind AS requires the financial instruments to be classified as fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL"} and arc measured at fair value, including

the following material items:
a) cerfain financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative financiat instruments) and contingent consideration that are measused at fair valuc;

b} assets heid for distribution to owners upon demerger that arc held at lower of carrying cost and fair value lcss cost to distribute;

c) share based payments; and
d) The defined benefit asset/(liability) which is recognised as the present value of defined benefit obligation less fair value of pian assets.

Accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.

The financial statements are based on the classification provisions contained in Ind AS 1, ‘Presentation of Financial Statements”. and division I of schedule
I of the Companies Act 2013. For the purpose of ¢larity, various items are aggregated in the staterents of profit and loss and balance sheet. These items
are disaggregated separatety in the notes to the financial statements, where applicable or required.

Fair value measurement )
The Company records certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis. The Company determines fair value based on the price it
. would receive to sell an asset or pay 1o transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date and either in the

. principal market or in the absence of a principal market, most advantageous market for that asset or liability.

Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 ~ Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 1 hierarchy includes tinancial instmments measured using
quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments, bonds and debentures and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all
financial instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included. within Level 1.that are.observable for the asset or liability, cither directly (i.e.as prices) or indirectly
—fizes del'ived from priccs) Fhe-fair value-of financial- instru.mcnts that-are: not tmded in anactivc market 1s: determincd using valuation tcchniqucsff*

fair value an ms!rument are observable the i mstrument is included in ]evel 2,

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unchservable inputs). If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities included in level 3.

In accordance with Ind-AS 113, ‘Fair value measurement’, assets and liabilities are to be measured based on the following valuation techniques:
(i) Market approach — Pnces and othcr relevant mformatlon generated by markct transactlons luvolvmg 1deni1cal or compamble assets or

“liabilities.
(ii) . Income approach — Converting the future amounts based on market expectations to its present value using the discounting method.

(3ii) . Cost approach — Replacement cost method.
23 Summary of material accounting policies

a)  Currenl versus non—vurrent classilication

The Company presents asscts and linbilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification. An asset is classified as current when it is:
(i)  Expueled W be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normat operating cycle;

(iily  Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

(i} Expected to be realised within tweive months after the rcpomng period; or

{iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless the asset is rcstnctcd from.being.gxchanged or uscd to settlc a llablllty for at lcast twelve months after the reportmg

period;

All other assets are classified as non-current.
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- A lability is current when:
(i}  Expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
(i1}  Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
(i} Due¢ to be settled within twelve months afier the reporting period; or
(iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. Terms of a llablhty that

could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments, do not affect its classification,
The Company classifics all other liabilitics as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash cquivalents. The Company has
identified tweive months as its operating cycle.

b) Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement
An item is recognised as an asset, if and only if, it is probabie that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and iis

cost can be measured reliably. Property, plant and “equipment under construction and cost of assets not ready for use at the year-end are disclosed as
capital work-in-progress (*CWIP").

Items of property, plant and equipment (*PPE’) and CWIP arc initially recognized at cost. Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All items of property,
plant and equipment are measured at cost fess accumulated depreciation and impairmeni losses, if any.Cost comprises the purchase price, asset retirement
obligation and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted

T HEVIHE it the plifehase™ PrEs: GeReial I §pecific BorFo Wing costs direety atiiibutable o the coistrictionol a Gunlifyitip asser i eapital tzed-as
part of the cost.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its carrying value or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future econemic benefits attributable to such subsequent cost associated with the item, will flow to the Company. The
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is de-recognised when replaced. All other expenses on existing items of property,
plant and equipment, including day-to-day repairs, mainterance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are recognised in the statermnent of profit and loss

in the year during which such expenses are incurred.

Advances given iowards purchase of an item of property, plant and cquipment or CWIP outstanding as at each balance sheet date are disclosed under
other non-financial assets.

Depreciation

The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over the estimated useful fives using written down value method from the date, the assets are
avaiiable for use.

The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Category Useful life
Buildings 60 vears
Plant and machinery 5 to 15 years
"|Leasehold improvement Shorter of useful life or lease period ’
AComputer equIpmMeEnt . B YEAIS e e e o e e
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
| Office Equipment 5.years
~|Vehicles - - - . Ca . < Byears o e

Based on technical assessment, Lhe useflul lives as given above best represent the period over which the management expects to use these assets. The
estimared usaful lves for these assars may therefors be different from the nsefisl vas preseribed under Part C of Sehedule 1T of the Companies Acl 2013,

_The residual values are generatty not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset, The asset’s restdual vaiues, useful Irves and methods o1 depreciation

of. property, plant and. cqulpment arg-reviewed--at-each-financial. ycar—cnd and. ad_]usted prospectwe!y, if appropnatc

" Where, dusing any ﬁnanc1a] year, any addmon has been made to any asset, or where any asset has been sold, dlscarded demullshed or destroyed or
significant compenents replaced; depreciation on such assets is calculated on a pro rata basis as individual assets with specific useful life from the month
of such addition or, as the case may be, up to the month on which such asset has been sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed or replaced.

Derecognition
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part, initially recognised, is derecognised upon disposal or when ne fisture economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or foss arising on derecognition of the asset (calci.llated as the difference between the net dlsposal proceeds

and the carrying amount-of the asset) is recognised in the statement-of profit-and loss-when the asset is-derecognised. -

¢} Intangible assets
Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are recognized when the Company controls the asset, and it is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to

the Company and the cost of the assct can be measured reliably. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at historical
cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at-cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost
comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Internally gencrated intangibles,
excluding capitalised sofiwarc development costs, arc not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the

-expenditure is incurred.

Subsequent expenditu
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The useful lives of imtangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finile Hves are amortised over the useful economic
life on a straight line method effective from the financial year 2024-25 (written down value methed till financial year 2623-24) and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an jndication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattem
of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted by modifying the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are
treated as changes in accounting estimates and adjusted accordingly. The amortisation ¢xpense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

The estimated uscful lives of intangible assets are as follows:
Category Usefnl life

Computer software o 5 years

(ains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangibie asset are measured as the difterence between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or foss when the asset is derecognised.

Software
Costs incurred in developing products or systems and costs incurred in acquiring software and licenses that will contribute to probable future economic

benefits through revenue gencration and/or cost reduction are capitalised to software and systems, Cosis capitalised include external direct costs of
matcrials, services, and dircct payroll and related costs of employees' ime spent on the project.

License & franchise!
Licenses & franchise fees are amortized commencing from ihe date when license & franchise fees are available for intended use.

“dy Investmeni 1o subsidlaries, assoclates and joini ventures
A subsidiary is an entity over which thc Company has control. The Company controls an investec entity when it is exposed to,or has rights to variable
retums ffom its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

An associate i5 an entity over which the Company has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control of those policies. This is generally the case where the Company holds between 20% and
50% of the voting rights.

A joint venture s a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the amrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the partics sharing confrol.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint contro) exist are similar to those necessary to determine control over the
subsidiaries. Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures is accounted for at cost less impairment loss, if any. The said investments are tested
for impairment whenever circumstances indicate that their carrying value may exceed the recoverable amount.

e) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

"~ Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement ‘
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction

.costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Trade receivables that do not.contain a significant. financing component are - measured..... -

at fransaction price. Purchaogres or sales of finoncinl asscts that roquire delivery of assets within o time frame entablished by regulation or sonvention in the
market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

__Subsequent measurement
For purposcs of subscqucnt measurement, financial assets are classified in below catcgorics
(1) __ Financial assets at amortised cost

- (i} . Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)... .0 00

(i) Financial assets, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or ]oss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost

A ‘financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

(i}  The asset is held within o business model whosc objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

(i)  Contractwal terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely ]Javmem'i of principal and interest (SPPT) on the principal
amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. EIR is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expeeted life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset.
When ¢alculating EIR, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,

" prepayments, extensions call and similar options} but does not consider the expected credit losses. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The interest income based on EIR is included as interest
mcome as a part of other income in the statement of profit and loss. The fosses arising from impairment are recognised in profit or loss. A gain or [oss on
such finangial asset which is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised. This category generally
applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial assets at FVTOCI
A “financial asset” is classificd as at the FVTOCE if both of the following criteria arc met;

(i)  The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
(ii)  The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL :




Rare Hospitality and Services Private Limited

All i INR million, unless stated otherwise

‘Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the
other comprehensive income {OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income caleulated using the EIR method, impairment losses & reversals
and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit or loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL .
FVTPL is a rcsidual category for Financial assets. Any financial asset, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as al amortized cost or as

FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

. In addition, the Company may elect to designate a financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL, However,
such election is made only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch).

Financial assets mcluded within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit or loss in respect of such assets
that are not part of a hedging refationship. The gain /loss on assets measured at FVTPL are presented in the statement of profit and loss within other
zains/losses in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is inctuded in other income.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value, Equity mstruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind-AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the
Company may make an itrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such
election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to ciassify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized
in the OCL There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit or loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may trensfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. B

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL catcgory are measured at fair value with gain/loss presented in the statement of profit and loss wnthm
other gains/losses in the period in whick it arises.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of simitar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed

from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

(1)  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

(iiy The Company has transferred its rights to reccive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either {a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or {b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset. -

When the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognized.
Similarly, where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recagnised to the extent of continuing involvement in the
financial asset. '

" Impairment of financial assets
‘The Company recognizes loss allowances on a forward-looking basis using the expected credit loss {EUL ) model for the hnancial assets which are not fir

~valued-through-profit- or-loss.- Lifctime ECL-allowance-is recognized: for-trade- reccivables- with- no-significant financing -component:-For-all-other e
“fmancial assels, expected credit lowses are measuted at an amount cqual to this 12-menth ECL, unless there has been'a significant increase in erediirisk

from initial recognitivn in which case (hey are measured w ifetime BCL., How the Company determines whether there has heen a significant increase in
the credit risk has been detailed in the notes to the financial statemenis. The amount nf expected credit lnsses (or reversal) that is vequired to adjust the loss
allowance at the reporting date is recognized in the statement of profit and loss... .. e e -

Financial liabilities

--Initial recognition and: measurement -

" Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recogn:tmn as financial liabilities at fair value through pmf it or loss, bormwmgs payablcs or as dcnvatwes
designated as hedging instruments in an cffective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial Habilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

‘I'he Company's tinancial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings 1ncludmg bank overdratts, financial guarantee contracts and
derivative ﬁnancial instruments.

Suhsequent measurentent
The measurement of financial labilitics depends on their classification, as described below,

" Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities demgnated upon initial
recognition as at fair value threugh profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpese of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments, if any entered into by the Company that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified ag held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instraments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if
the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satistied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are
recognized in OCL These gains/losscs are not subscqucnt]y transfcrrcd to prof it or loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gam 0,
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Borrowings

After initial recognition, borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowing using the EIR method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent it is probable that some or all of the facitity witl be drawn down, In thig case, the fee is deferred
untti the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or alf of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised
as a prepayment for liguidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it refates.

Preference shares which are mandatorily redeerable are classificd as liabilitics. The dividends on these preference shares, 1o the extent such dividends
are mandatorily payable, are recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.

The fair value of the liability portion of an optionaily convertible debenture/ bond/ preference share or a zere-coupon debenture/ bond/ preference share
or compulsorly convertible debenture/preference shares where the price of conversion of the debenture/preference shares into equity share is not fixed,
is determined using a market rate of intesest for an equivalent non-convertible bond. This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis
until extinguished on conversion or redemption of the bonds. The remainder of the proceeds is attributable to the equity portion of the compound financial
instrument. This is recognised and included in sharcholders® equity, net of income tax ¢ffects, and not subsequently remeasured.

When the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instrument to a creditor fo extinguish all or part of a liability (debt for
equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability and
the fair value of the equity instrument issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting perind. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term foan arrangement on or hefore the end of the reporting period
with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed,
-after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a conseguence of the breach.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company arc thosc contracts that requirc a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a financial asset. Financial guarantee contracts are
recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee, with
corresponding increase in investment in subsidiary, Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as
per impairment requirements of Ind-AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Financial Guarantee issued by the parent of the Company are recognized initially as a pre-payment at fair value with corresponding credit to equity
contribution by the parent. The pre-payment is amortized over the peried of financial guarantee on straight-line basis, and recognized as finance cost in
the statermnent of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. The difference between the camrying
amount of a financial lability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-ash assets
transferred or liabikities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/ losses. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of 2 new liability, The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the

" Reclassification of financial assets
The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilitics on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for
finencial nasets which arc equity instruments and finaneial liabilitics. For financial agsets which arc Financial assets, a reclassification is made only if
there is a change it the business mode] for managing those assels, Changes to (he business model are expeeted © be infreguent. The Company’s senior
managerent determine changes in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such
changes are evident to external parties.. A change in the business model occurs when the Company eititer begins or ceases to perform an activity that is
... significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively. from the reclassification date which
_is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised

gains, losses. (mcludmg lmpalrmentgams or| losses) or.interest.- — S — S ———

i Offseﬁ:mg of i‘ nanclal instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilitics are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal nghl to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the asscts and sctfle the Habilitics simultancously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insofvency

or barkruptey of the Company of the cuunterparty.

f} Trade receivables
-“Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing -component are recognised initially at transaction price and-subsequently measured - at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impaimment (allowance for expected credit loss).

g) Carrent and deferred tax :
" Income tax expensc or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxahle jncome based on the applicable tax rate adjusted by changes
in deferred tax assets and liabilitics attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses / unused tax credits.
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Current tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax laws enacted or substaniively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management
per:odlcally evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to 1nterpreiat10n It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to tax authorities.

The net amount of tax recoverabie from, or payable to, the taxation authority is inciuded as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Effective from April 1, 2019, the Company has adopted the option of fower effective corporate tax rate of 25.17% (including saurcharge and cess), as per
Section 115BAA of Income Tax Act

Deferred tax
Defetted rax s provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

(i) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or Hability in 4 transaction that is not a business combination
that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

(i1}  In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future

Deterred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deterred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be avaitable against which the deductible temporary dlfferenccs, and the
carry forward of unuscd tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

(iy  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

(i)  In respect of deductible temporary differerces associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable fisture and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrccogniscd deferred tax asscts arc re-assessed at cach reporting date
and are recognised to the ¢xtent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the Hability is settled,
based on tax rates {and tax laws} that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred
income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive enaciment date.

~ Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised m olher comprehensive income or directly in equily, respectively.

~h)- Cash and cash eqnivalents -
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash on hand, balance with bank and short-term dcp051ts with an ongmal maturity of three

months or less, which are readily convertible to known amounts of cagh and cash equivalents and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

 For the purpose of thy stateinst uf cash ﬂowa., cush und cush squividents consist of vk on hand, bajance with buk and short-lerm dupumlt. s duﬁnud o

Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in cumrent liabilities in the balance sheet...

i} Equity share capital
Equity shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly atiributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

1) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial year which are unpaid. The amounts

-...are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are.presented-as current liabilities unless payment is not due
within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method,

- k) Provisions and contingencies
Provisions
A provision is recognized when the Company has a present legal or a constructive obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are recognised for legal claims and
service warranties. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a namber of similar obhgatmns the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A prowsmn is reeagriiEdeyen 1f the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same ciass of’ obllgatlons }
may be small. g : "

above, net of outbtandmg bank overdrafts. (mcludmg ‘cash_credit. facilities) as. they are. ccmmdered an. mtegrai part Df the Comp_ y’5.cash. managemenr I
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Provisions are measiured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is the pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in provision due to the passage of time is recognised as an interest expense.

These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. In respect of losses that are covered by insurance, such
losses are recognised as an expense when there is clear evidence or determination or probability that any portion of the loss is not expected to be settled
through insurance or other forms of recovery.

Asset Retirement Obligations (ARO)

ARO are recognised for those operating lease arrangements where the Company has an obligation at the end of the lease period to restore the feased
premises in a condition simiiar to inception of lease. ARO are provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation and are recognised
as part of the cost of that particular asset and amortised or depreciated in the same manner as the asset to which it pertains. The estimated future costs of
decomimnissioning are reviewed annually and any changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are adjusted from the cost of the
asset.

Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the

occurrence or ron-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises

from past events where it is either not probable that an outfow of resources will be required to settle, or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.
~ Contingent asset is not recognised and is disclosed only where an intlow of economic benefits are probable.

- Contingent liabilities recognised in a business combination
A confingent liability recognised in a business combination Is initially measured at its fair value, Subsequently, it is measured at the higher of the amount
‘that would be recognised in accordance with the requirements for provisions above or the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with the requirements for revenue recognition.

B Revenue recognition

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration} allocated to that
performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of various discounts and
schemes offered by the Company as part of the contract. Revenue is recognized when the control is transferred to the custorner and when the Company
has completed its perfermance obligations under the contracts.

At the inception of the new contractual arrangement with the customer, the Company identifies the performance obligations inherent in the agreement.
The terms of the contracts are such that the services to be rendered represent a series of services that are substantially the same with the same pattern of
the transfer to the customer, '

Revenue is recognized as follows:

(i} Revenue from services represents the amounts receivable for services rendered.

(if}  For contract-based business (Expressed or implied), revenue represents the sales vatue of work carried out for customers during the period. Such
revenues are recognized in the period in which the service is rendered.

(iii)  Unbilled revenue (contract assets) net of expected deductions is recognised at the end of each period. Such unbilled revenue is reversed in the
subsequent period when actual invoice is raised.

~(iv) Uncarned income (contract liabilitics) represents revenue billed but for which services have not yet been performed. The same is released to the

statement of profit and loss as and when the services are rendered.

(v)  Revemnue from the use of assets such as rent for wsing properfy, plant and equipment is recognized on a straight-line basis aver the ferms of the
related leases unless payments are structured 1o increase in line with the expected general inflation to compensate for the lessors’ expected

inflationary cost increase.

Sale of goods ,

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the control of goods has been transferred, being when the products are delivered to the buyer, the
buyer having the full discretion over the use of the gonds and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the huyer’s acceptance of the praduct,
Delivery occurs when the produets have been shipped to the specific location, the risks of obsolescence atd loss have been transferred to the buyer, and

-—-either the buyer has.accepted the-products.in.accordance-with.-the. sales contract, the.acceplance provisions have lapsed, orthe Company. has objective. .
---evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied: Revenue from the-sale of goods-is measured at-the fair value-of the consideration received or - -

" receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. Discounts and rebates are estimated based on accumulated experience. The
Company provides normal warranty provisions for general repairs for one year on all its products sold, in line with the industry practice. A liability is
recognised at the time the product is sold. Revenue is deferred and recognised on a straight line basis over the extended warranty period in case warry
is provided to customer for & period beyond one year.

Rendering of services )

In contracts involving the rendering of services, revenue is measured using the proportionate completion method when no significant uncextainty exists
-regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from rendering the service. When the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised only to the extent that the expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.

Estimates of revenue, costs or extent of progress towards completion are revised if circumstances change, Any resulting increases or decreases in estimated
revenue or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known to the management.

Multiple-element arrangements
‘When a sales arrargement contains multiple elements, sich as services, material and maintenance, revenue for each element is determined based on each

element’s fair value.

Revenue recognition - for delivered elements is limited to the amount that is not contingent on the future delivery of producits or services, future
performance obligations or subject to customer-specified return or refund privileges.
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Interest income
For all financial assets measured either at amortised cost or at fair value (hrough other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the

effective interest rate (EIR). EIR ts the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, 1o the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of & financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument
(for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income
in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividends
Dividend income from investments is recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Company’s right 1o receive payments is established, i is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow te the Company, and amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Hental income
Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless payments are

structured to increase in line with the expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increase and is included in
revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature.

m) Employee benefits
The Company’s employee benefits mainly include wages, salaries, bonuses, compensated absences, defined contribution to plans, defined benefit plans
and share-based payments. The employee benefits are recogmzed in the year in which the associated services are rendered by the employees of the

Company.

Short-ferm obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary beneﬁts and compensated absences that are expected to be settled within twelve months after
the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to reporting date and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the Habilities are settled. The lability for compensated absences is recognised in the provision for
cmployee benefits, All other short-term employee benefit obligations are presented as emplovee benefits payable under other financial liabilities, current.

Bonus
The Company recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. The Company recognises a provision where contractually or legally obliged or where

there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Compensated absences/ leave obligations

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The employees
can carry forward up fo a specified portion of the unutilized accumnulated compensated absences and utilize it in future periods or receive cash at
retirement. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation (using the projected unit credit method)
based on the additional zmount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date. The
expense of non-accumulating compensated absences is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which the absences occur. Re-
measurements arising oul of actuarial gains / losses are immediately taken into the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

In respect of those employees who are entitled to an encashment of the leave at the end of every calendar year, a provision is created to account for the
liability.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an uncondlt:onal rlght to defer Settlement for at least
twelve months after the reporting date, regardless of when the actuad acttlement is expected to oceur.

Post-employment obligations

‘The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

i) Defined contribution plans such as provident fund and employees’ state insurance; and
iiy  Defined benefit plans such as gratuity.

Defined contribution plan .
- -The-Company?s-policy-to-contribute:on-a defined: CUﬂt['lblltlon basis:for-eligible employees; to-Employees® vaxdent Fund -Employees® Pension Scheme"':
—andﬁmplaye,cs,s,tate Insurance Scheme towards post=employment benefits, all ofwhlcharf:ﬁdmlmstcreibyjhe respective: Government authorities; and

has no further obligation beyond making its centribution which is expected in the year in which it pertains. The contributions arc accounted for as defined
contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are rccogmsed as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Defined benefit plan
The Company has a defined benefit plan, viz., Gratuity, for all its employees, the liability for which is accrued and provided for as determined by an
independent actuarial valuation. The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit
~obligation at the end of the reporting period. The defined benefit is actuarially determined (using the projected unit credit method) a1 the end of each year, =~ =

" Present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields on
government bonds at the end of the reporting periods that have approximately similar terms to the related obligation.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:
(i) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
(i1)  Net interest expense or income

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
(i)  The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

(iiy  The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs.

The net interest is calculated by applying the above mentioned discount rate to the net balance of the deﬁned benefit obkigations. This cost is included in
the cmployee benefits expense in the statement of profit and loss.
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Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefii Hability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined henefit liability), are recognised immediately
in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income i the peried in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Equity settled stock-based compensation
Employees (including scnior executives) of the Company receive remuncration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render serviges
as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions) of its parcnt company.

The cost of equity-settied transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model. The fair
value of options granted under various Employee Share option plans is recognised as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding increase in
equity (share aptinn cnistanding account). | :

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which ll of the specified vesting conditions aie 10 be salisfied. Al lhe
end of cach period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates in the period of change, if any, in the profit or loss, with corresponding adjustment
to equity. )

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions, if any, are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service requiremnent,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions. '

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions have not been met. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested immespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisficd, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied. -

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share.

Cash settled stock-based compensation

Employees of the Company receive share-based compensation in the form of parent company’s share aptions, The cost of cash-settled transactions is
measured initially at fair value at the grant date besed dn a debit note received from the parent company. This fair value is expensed over the period yntit
the vesting date with recognition of a corresponding liability,

n) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest calculated on the effective interest rate methad, other costs ineurred in connection with borrowing and exchange

differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. General and specific

borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of the assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get

ready for their intended use or sale {*qualifying assets’), are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
- intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the statement of profit and loss within finance costs in the period in which they are

incurred.

og)  Leases
' Corapany as a lessee )
the Company's lease nsset elusses primarily consist of leases for buildings, equipment and vehicles, For any new contract, the Company assesses whether
A contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right t use an asset (the underlying asset) for a
..period in exchange for consideration’. To apply this definition the Company assesses whether the contract meets three key-evaluations which-are whether: - oo
(1) the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly specified by being identified at the time the
-asset is made available to the Company ’
(ii) The Company has the right to obtain substantiaty all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset throughout the period of use, considering
its righls within the defined scope of'the contract
(iii) The Company has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use.

ompany-assesses whether it has the Tight to-direct “Tiow and for what purpose” the asset s used throughout the period of use.
Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

At lease commencement date, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (‘ROU’) and a correspunding lease liability on the balance sheet. The right-
of-use asset is measured af cost, which comprises of the initial measurement of the lease lability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an
estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the Ilease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date
{nel ol uny incentives received), .

s The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets using the straight line method from financial .ye.ar 2024-25 (written down value method 411 financial
year 2023-24} from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The
Company also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

IndAS116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with an option to extend or terminate the lease, if
the use of such option is reasonably certain. The lease term in firture periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current econormic
circumstances, .

Extension and termination options are included in a humber of leases of the Company. Thesc are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of
managing the asscts used in the Company’s operations. The majority of ¢xtension and termination options held are exercisable only by the Company and
not by the respective lessor, . e .
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At the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the

interest rate implicit in the lease i that rate is readily avaifable or the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments included in the measurement

of the lease liability are comprises of fixed payments (including in substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to be
- payable under a residual value guarantee and payments arising from options reasonably certain to be exercised,

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability wili be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment
or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected
in the right-of-usc asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero.

The Company has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets using the practical expedients. Instead of recognising a right-of-
use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.,

T.ease liability and right-of-use assets have been separately presented in the notes to the financial statements under *‘Other financial liability’ and ‘Property,
plant and eguipinenl’ (excepl those meeling (he delinition of investment property) respeclively. Lease payments have been classified as *cash flows from
financing activities’.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets:
The Company has elected not to recognise ROU and lease liabilities for short term leases that have a lease term of twelve months or less and leases of
low value assets. The Company recognises lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Cumpany as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as nperatmg leases. Rental
income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless payments are structured to increase in line
with the expecied general inflution 1o compensate for the expected inflationary cost increase under “Other Income™ in the statement of Profit and Loss.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating Jease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the
lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are rccogmscd as revenug in the period in which they are earned. The respective leased
assets are incleded in the balance sheet based on their nature.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transter from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due
from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of returh on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

p) Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful llfe are not subject to amoxtisation and are tested annually for 1mpa11-ment or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, An impairment foss is
recogniscd for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less cost of dispesal and its value-in-use. Value-in-use is the present value of future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset. For the purposes of impairment testing, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows which are largely independent of the cash infiows from other assets or group of assels (cash-generating units or CGU). Impairment
occurs when the carrying amount of a CGU including the goodwili, exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the Company’s CGUs expected to benefit from the synergies arising from the

“business combination. Total impairment loss of a2 CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of goodwill atlocatéd to the CGU and then to the
other assets of the CGU, pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the CGU. An impairment loss on goodwill recognized in the
statement of profit and loss is not reversed in the subsequent period. Non-ﬁnanclal assets other than goodwill that sulfered an impairment are réviewed
for possibie reversal of impajrment at the end of cach reporting periad.

q) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders of the Company (after deducting
preference dividends and atributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that theéy were entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid

. _equxty share during the reporting pericd.  The weighted avéragé riumber of equity shares outstanding duing the péried is adjusted for everts. of bonus_ B

; —issue;bonus elentent irra rightsissue to existing sharcholdersy share split and reverse share split {consolidation of shares).

Diluted Earnings per share amounts are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company (after deducting

preference dividenda and attributoble taxes but atter adjusting the after income tax cffect of interest and other financing cost associated with dilutive

Jilential eynity shares) by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted

average mimber of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all difutive potential equity sharcs. The diluted potential equity sharcs

are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been acwually issved at fair value (i.e. the average markel velue of the outstanding shares).

_...Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as at the beginning of the year, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are..
“determined independently for each year presented. '

r} Statement of Cash flows

‘Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the peried is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and finencing activities of the Company are segregated.

2.4 Other accounting policies
a) Investiment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not cccupied by the Company, is classifted as 1nvestment
property.
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The cost includes borrowing costs for fong-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized to the
asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of
such expenditure can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. When part of an investment
property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized.

Investment properties are depreciated using written down value method over their estimated useful lives of 60 years. The useful life has been determined
based on a technical evaluation performed by the management’s expert.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been dispesed of or when they are penn'ancntly withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognmed in profit or
less in the period of derecognition.

b) Financial instruments

Derivatives
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair valuc on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the

end of each reporting period. The accounting for subsequent changes in fair value depends upon whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged, and the type of hedge relationship designated.

Derivatives which are not designated as hedges are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss and are included in other gains/ losscs.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract — with the effect that some
of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash
flows that otherwise would be required by the contract to be modified according to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price,
foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the casc of a non-financial variable that the
variable is not specific to a party to the contract.

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is & financial asset within the scope of Ind-AS 109, the Company does not separate embedded derivatives,
Rather, it applies the classification requirements contained in Ind-AS 109 to the entire hybrid contract. Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts
are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging instruments. Reassessment only occurs if there is
either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss.

¢) Inventories
Inventories are vatued at the lower of the cost or net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,

less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary 1o make the sale,

Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs ingurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in,
first out basis.

“"d) Non-current assets held for sale/distribution to owners and discontinued operations

The Company classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale/distribution to owners if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principaily through a sale/distribulion rather than ibzough continuing use and where a salc is considered highly probable. Actions required to complete
the sale/distribution should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the sale/distribution will be made or that the decision to sell/distribute
will he withdrawn and Managemant muat ba enmmitted tn the sale/distribntion heing completed within ane year from the date of classification.

~Non-current assets held for saje/for distribution to owners and disposal groups are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and the fair value less
costs to sell/distribute except for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets and contractual rights under
insurance contracts, which nre specificelly cxempt from this requircment. Asscts and liabilitics classified as held for sale/distribution are presented
separaiely in the balance sheet.

A il.'j;x.'pﬂ
is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell/ distribute an assct {or a disposal group), but not in excess of any cumulative
impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of sale/ distribution of the non-current asset {or disposal
group} is recognised on the date of derecognition.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale/distribution to owners are not depreciated or amortised.

... A disposal group qualifies as discontinued 6peration if it is.a component of an. entlty that clther has been dispased of, or.is clasmﬁed as. held for sale, and R

“(1}' Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations,
(i)  Is part of & single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, or
(iii}  Is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale :

Discontinued operations are excluded from the resulis of continning operations and are presented as a single amoumt as profit or loss after tax from
discontinued operations in the statement of profit and loss,

All othet notes to the financial statcments mainly inclede amounts for continuing operations, unless otherwise mentioned.

t 1055 15 recogrised for any inilial or subseguent write-down of the asset (or disposal group) to fair valuc [css costs to sell/disiribute. A gain
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e) Government grants
Grants from the Government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and the Company will

comply with all attached conditions.

Govemnment grants relating to income or expenditure /expenses are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the peried necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intendéd to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchasc of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current Habilifies as deferred income and recognised
on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of related assets and presented within other income.

fy Foreign currency transaction and balances
The financial statemonts of the Company arc presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is also the Company’s functional currency,ic, the currency of

the primazy economic environment in which the Company operates.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot rates prevailing at the date, the
transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are transiated at the functional currency spot rates prevailing as at the reporting daie,
Subsequently, differences arising on restatement or settlement of monetary items are recognised in profit ot loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign cutrency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions and translation differences
are recognized in OCY with the accumulation in other equity as foreign currency translation reserve. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

The equity items denominated in foreign currencics are translated at historical cost.

g) Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders of the Company
The Company recognises a lability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when the distribution is authorised and the

distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Non-cash distributions are measured at the carrying value of the assets to be distributed in case of disiributions in which all owners of the same class of
equity instrumentis are treated equally or the distributed asset is ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before and after the distribution,
and at fair value of the assets to be distributed in other cases, with such value recognised directly in equity. For this purpose, a group of individuals shall
be regarded as controlling an entity when, as a result of contractual arrangements, they collectively have the power to govern its financial and operating
policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities, and that ultimate collcctive power is not transitory. Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference
between the carrying amount of the liability and the carrying amount of the assets distributed is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

h} Exceptional items
Exceplional ftems refer to items of income or expense within the statement of profit and loss from ordinary activities which are non-recurring and are of
such size, nature or incidence that their separate disclosure is considered necessary to expiain the performance of the Company.

2.5 Recent Indian Accounting Standards (IndAS)
‘Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”™) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies {Indian Accounting Standards)
- Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS — 117 Insurance Centracts and amendments to Ind AS
116 - Leases, reluling to sule and leascback transactions, applicable to the Company w.c.f. April 1, 2024, The Company has reviewed the new
pronouncements and based on its evaluation has determined that it does not have any significant impact in its financial statemenis,

3. Significant accounting judgements, estifates and assumptions
- Use of estimates and judgment

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind-AS requires management to make Jjudgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
“'the’ application of actounting policies and the Téported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and other comprehenstve income (OCI) that
are reported and dlsclosed in the ﬂnancual statements ancl accompanymg notes

of future events that may have 2 financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made varions judgements, which have the most significant effect on the

amounls recognised in the financial statements.

'Esﬁmatcsﬁandimdcriyin'gassumptions}mﬂ-evicwcd’on*dn’ongoingbasir”l’heyarc"ﬁéscd’on’historical;expeﬁenc'e;éﬁa’bt'l'fér""t;&étno1"é*'i'ri'cludiﬁg’expectati'ons%. P

w1 his niote provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of ifems which are more likely to be maferially. ...~

adjusted due to estimates and assumptions tuming out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about ach of these estimates
and judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line itern in the financial statements.

Critical estimates and judgements

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

(i)  Estimation of current tax expense and payable — Note 8
(i)  Estimated useful life of intangible assets — Note 2.3.¢
(#i) Estimation of defined benefit obligation — Note 26

(iv) Impairment of trade receivables — Note 11
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Tmpairment

The Company assesses impairment at each repotting date by evaluating conditions specific to the Company that may lead to impairment of assets. Where
an impairment Lrigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined. Value-in-use calculations performed in assessing recoverable amounts
incorporate a number of key estimates. There are no reasonable foreseeable changes in these key estimates which would have caused an impairment of
these assets.

Share-based payments

Estimating fair vatuc for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the
terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected
life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will he availahle against which the losses can
be wilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred lax assels lel van be recopnised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
zctuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include
the determination of the discount rate, fture salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic
changes. Future salary increases, and pratuity increases aie based o expected fulwe inllativn 1ates, (Rele uule 26)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

. When the fair values of financiat asscts and financial labilities recorded in the belance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets,

their fair value is measurcd using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flows model. The inputs to these models arc taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of
inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments. (Refer note 19)

Leases

‘Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease,

if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected fease term on a lease-by-lease basis and there by
assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any aptions to extend or terminatc the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the leasc term, the Company
considers factors such as any significant lcaschold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the
availability of suitable altematives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the cwrrent economic circumstances,
(Refer note 16)

Provisions
At each balance sheet date basis the management judgement, changes in facts and legal aspects, the Company assesses the requ]rement of provisions

against the outstanding contingent liabilities. Howevcr the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Contingencies

~Contingent liabiifies may ariso from the ordinury course ol business in rebition (o clouns agunst the Company, including legal, contractual and othey
__claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved onty when one or more unceriain future events oceur or fail to_occur. The assessment of the
—unislence, and. potential quantun,-of contingencies-inherently-involves the-exercise of-significant-judgements-and- the- use-of estimates-regarding -the - - ----mmwmreniee

outcome of future events.
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4. Property, plaat and equipment

Year ended March 31, 2024

¢ 1| Net carrying

Gross block Accumulated depreciation .

Description of Assets As at April 1, Additions Saleand | As at March 31, AsatApril 1, | Charge for the Sale and. - o|; valueasat

2023 during the year | adjustments 2024 2023 year adjustments {| Mareh 31, 2024
Buildings 18.73 212.56 u 23129 31.50 2149 - 20630
Plant & Machincry 37.03 12.41 n 49.44 EE.O1 597 - 32.66
Furniture & Fixture 0.52 - n 0.50 0.33 0.02 - C.15
Vehicles 1.75 2.29 - 4.05 1.08 0.23 - 2.74
Office equipment 2.80 - - 2.80 1.90 0.32 - 2 (.58
Computer equipment 495 - - 496 371 0.54 . 4.5 .71
Grand Total 05,73 2127.26 - 293.04 21.53 28.37 - 49,90 243.14

Year ended March 31, 2025 :
Gross block Accumulated deprecition | Nes carrying

Deseription of Assets AsatApritl, |  Additions Saleand  |AsatMarch31,| AsatAprill, | Chargefor the | Saleand, |AsatMarch31;| . valucasat

2024 dering the year | adjustments 2025 2024 year adjustments 2035 . |March 31,2025
Buildings 231.29 - 1.33 232.62 24,99 47.37 : 7236 160.26
Plamt & Machinery 49,49 11.26 - 60,70 16.78 6.28 - 23.06 3764
Furniture & Fixture 0.50 - - 0.50 0.35 0.01 i 0.36; ¢.14
WVehicles 4,05 3.57 - 7.62 1.31 1.33 - uma 4.98
Office equipment 2,80 - - 2.80 222 018 - 2.40; .40
Computer equipment 4,95 0.09 - 5.05 4.25 0.21 446 .59
Grand Total 293.04 14.92 1.33 309.29 49,90 55.38 105.28: 204.01
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(i) Details of Right of use assets — _.EEEN is as below:

Particnlars Building Total
Balance as on March 31, 2023 15.23 15,23
Additions during the year 212.56 212.56
Depreciation during the year (21.49) (21.49)
Balance as on March 31, 2024 206.30 206.30
Additions during the year 1.33 1.33
Depreciation during the year @130 {47.37)
Balance as on March 31,2025 160.26 160.26

Refer note 16 for disclosure on related lease liabilides.

(ii) Property, Plant and Equipment pledged as security

Refer Note 15 for information on Property, Plant aad Equipment pledged as security by the Company,

(iii) During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Compzny has changed the method of depreciation from Written down value (WDV) to Straight line _.:nm_._om ﬁmﬁ?d

Intangible Assets effective from April H 2024. The impact of such change is set oui below:

.SE R pect o ROU and

(Decrease)/Increase in depreciation muumia due to .o?a:mm in depreciation

Particulars sz_ow

202425 2025-26 MON@.NQ Total
Right-of use assets (Refer note 4) + (51.88) (5.88) 17.53 (40.23)
Other Intangible Assets (Refer note 5) - - 1 -
Total (51.88) (5.88) 17.53 (40.23)
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5. Other Intangible assets

Year ended March 31, 2024

Gross block Accumulated amartisation . Met carrying
Description of Assets AsatApritl, | Additions Sale and AsatMarch | AsatApritl, | Chargeforthe|  Saleand As ai March || velueasat
2023 during the year | adjustments 31,2024 2023 year adjustments 31,2024 | | Mareh 31,2024
Computer software 1.38 - - 1.38 1.25 0.04 - £.29) 0.09
Intangible assets under development - - - - . - - -
Grand Totsl 138 - - 1.38 1,25 0.04 - 0.09
Year ended March 31, 2025
Gross block Accumulated amartisation H Mt carrying
Description of Assets As at April 1, Additions Sale and Asat March | AsatAprill, | Charge for the Sale and Asat March[| valueasat
2024 during the year | adj 31, 2025 2024 year adjustment: 31,2025 | ||Mareh 31,2025
Computer software 1.38 - - 1.38 1.29 0.02 - L31 0.07
Intangible assets under development - 222 - 222 - - - - 222
Grand Total 138 222 - 3.60 1.29 0.02 - 2.29
(i} Aging of Intangible assets under development:
Year ended March 31, 2024
Particulars <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years | Total
- Projects in progress - - - - -
Tatal - - - - -
Year ended March 31, 2025
Particulars <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years | Total
- Prajects in progress 2.22 - - - 2.22
Total 222 - - - : 2.22
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6. Investments

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non-current investments
Investments in eqaity instruments
Unquoted equity shares (fully paid)
2,500 equity shares (March 31, 2024: 2,500 ) of INR 10/~ each fully paid up in Saraswat Cooperative Bank limited 0.03 0.03
50 equity shares (March 31, 2024: 50 ) of INR 10/- each fully paid up in Citizencredit Caoperative Bank limited 0.00 0.00
Total investment in equity instruments 1.03 6.03
Total non-current investments 0.03 0.03
Total current investments - -
Tetal investments 0.03 0.03
Aggregate book value of quoted investments and market value thereof - -
Aggregaile book value of unquoted investments 0.03 0.03
Agpregate amount of impairment in value of investments - -

7. Other financial assets
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Other non-current financial assets
Security deposits (unsecured, considered good) 14.14 13.92
Margin meney * ' 4.00 3.11
Fixed deposit maturing after 12 months 41.01 1.01
Total Other non—current financial assets 59.15 18.04
Other current financial assets
Unbilled reverue ** 140.49 14343
Security deposits (unsecured, considered good) 257 1.73
Interest acerued on deposits / investments 0.79 0.21
Other receivables 0.40 025
Total other current financial assets 144.25 145.62
Total financial assets 203.40 163.66

* Pledged as security/margin money against guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the Company.

** All unbilled dues are undisputed and falling under the ageing bucket of not due. Further, unbilled revenues are classified as financial assets as right to

consideration is unconditional and is due only after passage of time.

No other advances are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person and from firms or private

companics respeciively in which any director 15 a pariner, a director or a member, except as disclosed in note 34.

‘Refernote 35 for the Company’s policy regarding impairment allowance on other financial assets and Company’s credit risk management processes.

8. lacome tax
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are:

Statement of profil and Juss:

‘Profit-or-loss section:

Mareh 31,2025

Particalars—

T

Current income tax:

Current income tax charge

Adjustments in respect of current income tax expense / (reversal) of previcus years

Deferred tax;

~-|Decrease / (increase) in deferred tax assets (net)

—(5.01)

17,597

Income tax expense / (¢redit) reported in the statement of profit and loss

(5.01}

17.5%
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OCI section:
Tax related to items recognised in OCJ during the year:
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Tax expense / (credit) on re-measurements of defined benefit plans 0.24 (0.30)
Income tax charged to OCI 0.24 {0.30)
Amount recognized directly in equity:
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Aggregate current and deferred tax arising in the reporting period and not recognized in profit or loss or other| R }
comprehensive income, but directly debited/credited to equity
Income tax credited / (charged) to equity - -
Reconeilintion of tnx expense snd the seeounting profit multiplicd by the tax rate for Mureh 31, 2025 end Maorch 31, 2024;
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Accounting profit before income tax 38.15 21.02
Statutory income tax rate 25.137% 25.17%
Income tax expense at statutory rate 9.60 529
Additional temporary ax reversal /(deductible) in respect of certain benefits under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (14.67) 12.30
Non-deductible expenses for tax purpases
Other non-deductible expenses 0.06 -
Tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss {5.01) 17.59

The effective tax rate applicable to the Company for the financial year 2025-26 would be 25.17% (including surcharge and cess) based on the law as it exists

on the date of these financtal statements.

The balance in deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Property, plant and equipment / Intangible assets (39.03) {50.97)
Defined benefit obligations 46.54 42.60
Deductions in respeet of certain benefits under the Income Tax Act, 1961 9.83 13.13
Accruals and others 49.55 56.98
Allowance for expected credit loss — trade receivables 9.10 9.48
Total deferred tax assets / (liabilities) 75.99 71.22
Reconciliation of deferred tax assets {Habilities), net:
Particulars Property, plant Defined Deductionsin | Accruals and| Allowance Total
and cquipment / henefit respect of certain others for expected
Intunyible assets | obligations | benefils under the credit loss —
Intome Tax Act, | trade
.. 1961.... _receivables .| ... .
. As at April 1, 2023 (2.82) 4344 35.40 4.7 1.78 88.51
: l’L’;gL?ZZdTZ ;:m(;[;::?s cing: fhe perier - (815 ERL) | s Lo onawf
;l“ax mcom:j é C(Iexpcnse:) during the period C0a0 o - 030
As at March 31, 2024 {50.97) 42.60 13.13 56.98 5,48 7122
:;ac’;g::::ﬁ: ;m(;i‘gf’:z)s during the period 11.94 418 (3.30) (7.43) (0.38) 5.01
::[1:); g;r:sc:dn':; (IJ L;e)qx',nsc) during the period ~ 029 ; _ . 024
As at March 31, 2025 (39.03) 46.54 9.83 49.55 $.10 75.99
Income tax assets:
| Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance 51.63 66.31
Taxes paid 2996 3583
Refund received C(35.34) (44.51)
Tncome tax assets 46.25 51.63

The Company offsets tax agsets and liabilities if and ouiy if it has a Jegally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
late to income taxes levied by the same tax autherity. o

~ deferred tax assets and deferred ¢

o 2
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9. Other assets

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Other non-current assets
Other advances 0.35 0.05
Total other non-current assets 0.35 0.05
Other current assets
Prepaid expenses 8.75 5.0
Other advances 5.60 5.31
Other current assets* 46.69 26.78
Total other current assets 62.04 3780
Total other assets 6239 37.85
* Includes balance with revenue authorities
10. Ioventories
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Uniforms 0.23 244
Others 0.04 0.04
Total inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value 0.27 248
11. Trade receivables
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade recejvables 389.33 368.89
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss 36.14 37.65
Total trade receivables 353.19 331.24
Break-up of security details:
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Secured, considered good - -
Unsecured, considered good 353.19 33124
Total 353.19 331.24

The amount of loss allowance ("lifetime” excepted credit loss) has been recognised under the simplified approach for trade receivable and hence break-up of
trade receivable into 'significant increase in credit risk' and 'credit impaired’ has not been disclosed separately.

The ageing schedule for outstanding trade receivables from the due date is given below:

Year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars Qutstanding for following periods from due date Total
NotDue | Lessthan6 | 6 months-1] 1-2 years 2-3 years | More than 3
months year
- | (i} Undisputed trade receivables © 2231 262.52 23.68 18.60 29.23 2589 382.23)
.| (ii) Disputed trade receivables R - - 193 - 517 L N
Year ended March 31, 2024
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date Total
NotDue | Lessthan 6 | 6 months-1| 1-2 years 2-3years | Morethan3
months year years
{i) Undisputed trade receivables 167.61 78.66 32.88 45.77 16.78 20012 361.82
" I(¥) Disputed trade receivables _ - 1.03 - . 514 7.07
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The movement in allowances for expected credit loss is as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Opening balance 37.65 30.90
Additions 9.00 6.75
Writc off {net of recovery) (10.51) -

Closing balance 36.14 37.65

No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company cither severally or jointly with any other person and from firms or pnvatc

companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a dircctor or a member, except as disclosed in note 34.

Refer Note 35 for the Company's policy regarding impairment allowance on trade receivables and Company’s credit risk management processes.

For outstanding balances, terms and conditions relating to related party teceivahles refer Note 34.

12. Cash and bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balances with banks:

— In current and other accounts 6.18 8.32
Total 6.18 8.32

Bank balances fying in various current accounts bear no interest.

There are no repatriation restrictions with regard {o cash and cash equivalents as at the end of reporting peried and prior periods.

Other bank balances
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Deposits with criginal maturity of more than three months and having rcma]mng ‘maturity of less than twelve months] 0.10 1.03
from reporting date -
Margin money * 0.14 0.81
Total 0.24 1.54
* Pledged as security/Margin Money against guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the Company
13. Equity share capital
Authorized share capital
Equity shares of INR 10 each No. of shares (INR million)
As at April 1, 2023 15,040,000 15.04
Increase/(decrease) during the year - -
As at March 31, 2024 15,00,000 . 15.00
{Incrense/{decrease) during the yoor -1 7 -
Asat March 31,2025 “15,00,000 15,000
" Tssued, subscrihed and paid up equity capital
" Equity shares-of INR 10-each—— No.of shares | (INR miliion |
HAs atApril 12023 116921
| Increase/(decrease) during the year - -
.| As at March 31, 2024 11,69,213 11.69
Increase/(decrease} during the year - -
As at March 31, 2025 11,69,213 11.69
...Shares held by holding / ultimate holding Company / andfo.r..th..ei..r.suh.sidi.a.riesfa.ssociatcs. .
~Qut of the equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company are as below:
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
.|Holding Compzany No. of shares No. of shares
818 Limited {formerly known as "Security and Intelligence Services (india) Limited")* 11,69,213 1169213

* includes | nominee share (March 31, 2024: 1 share) held by Rituraj Kishore Sinha.
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Dividends

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. According to the Companies Act, 2013 any dividend should be declared out of accumulated
distributable profits. A Company may, before the declaration of any dividend, transfer a percentage of its profits for that financiat year as it may consider
appropriate to the reserves.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

Terms/rights attached to equity shares .

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share and to
participate in dividends in proportion to the number of and amounts pdid on the shares held. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees,

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of
all preferentia! amounts. The distribution will be in preportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

Details ol sharcholders holding more than 3% shares In the Company

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Name of the shareholder % holding in the % holding in the
No. No, .
class class
SIVS 'Lm'uted (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) 11,60213 100% 1169213 100%
Limited')
Details of promoter sharcholding in the Company
Year ended March 31, 2024
S. No. Name of the Promoter/Promoter Growp Equity shares as| Equity shares as %
% %
on Mareh 31, o on March 31, holding i Change
2024|10iding in 2023{#4R 7 | quring the
(in Nos.) the class | . {in Nos.) the class year
Promoters
1 SIS Limited (formerly known as "Security and Intelfigence Services (India) 11,69,213 100% 11,69,213 100% 0%
Limited")
Total 11,69,213 11,69,213
Year ended March 31, 2025
8. No. . Name of the Promoter/Promoter Group Equity shares as Equity shares as %Yo
% %
on March 31, holding i on March 31, holding i Change
2025 HolenE 2024 '; M8 | during the
(in Nos.) the class (in Nos) the class year
Promoters
1 SIS Limited (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (Endia) 11,69,213 100% 11,69213 100% 0%
Limited”) .
Total 11,69,213 . 11,69,213
14. Other equity
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Resorves and surplus
- |Securities premium 68.31 68.31
_ |General reserve s} - 500
Retained eamings 164.68 . - 60.79.
‘Fotal reserves. and surplas (A)......... ATTee IR0
Other reserves
" {Equity contribution by parent 8.034 . ' 5.33
‘I'vtal other reserves ) 403 5.33
‘I'ntal other equity (A+B) 186.02 139,43
o Securities premium o :
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
_|Balance at the beginaing of year o . : 6831 68.31
Increase/(decrease) during the year - -
Balance at the end of year 68.31 68.31
General Reserve
Ifarﬁcnlars . ’ March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of year m 5.00 . .. 5.00
Increase/(decrease) durin; / S A ’ - o~
g the year (SN 'y % L
Balance at the end of year /695 / \C‘?n\ s00 | ' /fw
[ L¥H] T m—
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Retainedl Earnings

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of year 60.79 58,25
Net Profit / (loss) for the year 43.16 343
Ttems of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained eamings

- Remeasurements of post-employment benetit plans directly in retained earnings (net of taxes) 0.73 {0.39)
Balance at the end of year 184.68 60.79

Equity contribution by parent

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of year 5.33 2.19
Fuir vtlue sdjustment of corporate glarantee provided by parent 2.70 3.04
Balance at the end of year 8.03 5.33

Nature and purpose of reserves

Securities premiom

Security premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares or other securities such as debentures or bonds. The reserve is utilized in accordance with

the Companies Act, 2013.

General reserve

The general reserve is the result of a company’s transferring a certain amount of profit from the account of retained earnings to the general reserve account.
The purpose of setting up a general reserve account is to meet potential future unknown liabilities. In other words, the general réserve is a free reserves which

can be utilized for any purpose after fulfilling certain conditions,

Retained earnings

Retained earnings represent the amount of accumulated earnings of the Company and re-measurement differences on defined benefit plans.

Equity contribution by parent

Equity contribution by parent represents guarantee given by parent as a guarantor on behalf of the Company.

15. Borrowings

Particulars Note March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non-current borrowings
Seenred
Term loans
From banks
- HDFC Bank Eimited a 12.88 13.73
- Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank Limited b 3.66 1.70
_| Total secured borrowings 16.54 15,43
T|Unsecured ™~ ° 7 T 7T T T s e
Total non- current borrowings 16.54 15,43
Current maturity of long term borrowings {6.839) C(1eznf.
R Non-current borrewings 9651 522
Current borrowings
"'|Secured
Loans repayable on demand
From banks
- HDFC Bank Limited [ 151.30 164.35
“[Totat secured borrowings 15130 16435
Total unsecured borrowings - -
-|Add: Current maturity of long term borrowings 6.89 10.21
Current borrowings 158.19 174.56
167.84 179.78

Apgregate Secured borrowings

Aggregate Unsecured borrowings Pt I
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Breakup of current maturity of long-term borrowings:

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Current maturity of long term borrowings:

Secured

Term loans

From banks

6.89

10.21

Unsecured

Total current maturity of long term borrowings

6.8%

10.21

Notes:
Long Term Borrowings - Secured:

ay  Secured against the fixed assets of the Company, purchased out of the loan and a comomte guarantes from the halding company. The loan carries
multiple repayment schedules ranging from 21 to 55 equal monthly instalments of INR 0.06 militon to 0.14 million each and interest @ 8.71% per
annum (T-BILL - 90 DAYS + applicablc spread} (March 31, 2024: 10.17% per annum T-BILL - 90 DAYS + applicable spread),

b)  Securcd against the vehicle of the Company purchased out of the loan. The loan carries interest @ 8.75% per annum and is repayable in 36 equal

meonthly instalments of INR 0.03 million each (March 31, 2024; 8.75% per antum)

Short Term Borrewings -- Secured:
Loans repayable on demand:

¢}  Secured against stocks & book debis (both present and fisture) and a corporate guarantee from the holding company and carrics interest @ 10.12% per
annum (3M T-BILL + applicabie spread) per annum (March 31, 2024: 10.59% per annum 3M T-BILL + applicable spread).

The quarterly/monthly retumns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with bank are in agreement with the books of accounts

16. Lease liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Non-current lease Jiabilities 137.65 183.73
Current lease tiabilities 47.46 3530
Total lease liabilities 185.11 223.03
Other disclosure related to lease
Particulars March 31, 2025 Marceh 31, 2024
Opening balance 223.03 1743
Additions 133 212.56
Finance cost accrued during the year 19.61 3.27
Payment of lease liability (58.86) (10.23)
Closing balance 185.11 223.03
Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
| Other disclosure of lease
9.43

Rent expenses refated to short-term leases and low value assels

8.54 |

~Refer note 4(i) for disclosure of related Right of Use Assets,

—The-Company-does-not-expect-potential—exposure -to-variable-lease~payments;extensiony/termination ~optiomns; guaranteed ~residual~valueatd ~lgase— """

commitrnents.
17. Trade payables
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non-current - -
Current
Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (MSME) 1.86 2.28
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 21.24 26.84
Total current trade payables 23.10 29.12
Total 23.10 29.12

The terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities are as follows:

a.
b For outstandmg balances, terms and conditions with related parties, refer to note 34.

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on credit terms ranging from 30-90 days which vary by vendor and type of service.
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Based on the information available with the Company, (he amount payable to creditors who have been identified as “suppliers” within the meaning of “Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006™ is as below:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Principal amount and the interest [TNR Nil (March 31, 2024 —Nil)] due thereon 1.86 2.28
Amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006, along with the amounts of the|
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting vear

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006

Amount of interest acenied and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year - -

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest
dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disaliowance as a deductible expenditure - -
under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

The ageing schodude for vuistunding irade payables where due dute of payment iy given below:
Year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars Ontstanding for following periods from due date ) Total
NotDue <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
())MSME 1.85 0.01 - - - j 1.86
(ii)Others 13.38 7.26 0.45 0.02 0.13 2124

Year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars ’ Outstanding for following periods from due date Total
Not Due <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
({)MSME 228 - - ' - - 2.28
(ii)Others i6.38 10.06 0.21 0.14 0.05 26.84

There are ne disputed dues as at year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

18. Other financial liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Nen-current - -
Cuorrent ]

Capital creditors 3.18 243
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings ) 0.02 0.01
Employee bencfits payable 124,11 112,98
Other payabies and accruals * N ' 45.00 23.65
Total other current financial liabilities 172.40 139.07
‘'Fotal other financial liabilities ' ' ' o 172.40 139.07

% Includesunbilled dues having ageing of less than one year

19, Financial instruments by eategory

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

FVTFL FVTOCT Amoeortiscd cost | FVTFL FVFOCT Amorfised cost
Invesiments B

—Bquity instruments 0.03 - - 003 - -

Trade receivables - - 353.19 - - 33124
Cash and cash equivalents - - 6.18 - - 8.32
Other bank balances . - . - 0.24 - - 1.84 |
Ooies inamoial s T i T T B

Total financial assets 0.03 - 563.01 003 - 505.06

. |Financial liabilities:

Trade payables ’ - - 23.10 - -
Borrowings : - - 167.84 - -
Lease liabilities - - 185.11 - . -
Other financial liabilities - - 172.40 - -

Total financial liabilities A’;’?\ o - 548.45 - -
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Fair value hierarchy

The assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recutting basis and the basis for that measurement is as below:

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Level Linputs | Levei 2 inputs

Level 3 inputs

Level 1 inputs

Level 2 inputs | Level 3 inputs

Financial assets:

Investments carricd at FVTPL

0.03

- 0.03

Total financial assets

0.03

- 0.93

Valuation methodelogies
Investments:

The Company’s investments consist primarily of investment in equity shares of unquoted compenies. Management has considered cost to be approximating
to fair value considering the immaterjality of such investments.

The following table presents the change in level 3 items for the year eaded March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,

Particulars Marech 31, 2025 |March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 0.03 0.03
Changes during the year - -
Closing at the end of the year 0.03 0.03
Fair values of assets and liabilities carried at amortised costs are as follows:
Particulars F_a.ir value Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
bierarchy Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
Financial assets:
Trade receivables 35319 35319 331.24 331.24
Cash and casl: equivalents 6.18 5.18 8.32 8.32
Other bank balances 0.24 0.24 1.84 1.84
Orther financial assets 203.40 203.40 161.66 163.66
Total financial assets 563.01 563.01 505.06 50506,
Financial liabilities:
Trade payables 23190 21.10 29.12 2912
Borrowings- floating rale 164,18 164,18 179.78 179.78
Borrowings- fixed rate Level 2 3.66 3.60 - -
Lease liabilities 185.11 185.11 223.03 223.03
Other financial liabilities 172.40 172.40 139,07 139.07
Taotal financial lizbilities 548.45 54839 571.00 571.00

The Company has assessed that the fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables, capital creditors, trade payables, bank overdrafis and other
current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely dug to the short term maturities of these instruments.

- Valuatmn mputs and re[ahonslups o falr value

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Signigicant unobscrvable inputs

[{X{5]

ne3

Cnst

Unquul.cd cyuity shares

Valuation processes -

The finance team-of parent performs. the valuations of financial-assets-and liabilities required for financial- reportmg purpﬂses -including-level 3-fair-value

The teamm Teports diréotly to the chief financial officer of Parent (CFO). Disctissions of valuation processes and results are held bétween the CFO and the
valuation team at least once every 3 months in line with the Company’s quarterly reporting period. External valuer’s assistance is also faken for valuation

" purposes where required.

The main level 3 inputs used by the Company are derived and evaluated as fotiows:
Discounts rate are determined using a capifal asset pricing model to calculate a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of

money and the risk specific to the asset.

Company’s internal credit management group,

Volatility used for option pricing model is based on historical volatility of comparable companies.

Contingent consideration — estimated based on expected cash outflows anising from the forecasted sales and the entities; knowledge of the business and
" how the current economic environment is likely to impact it. :

Risk adjustments specific to the counter parties (including assumptions-about credit default-rates) are derived from credit risk grading determined by the: - -
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20. Provisions

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Provision for employee benefit (refer note 26) Non-current| Current| Non-current Current

Gratuity 85.35 59.78 73.52 54.08

Compensated absences - 16.62 - 17.76

Total 85,35 76.40 73.52 71.84
21. Other liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Other non-current liabilities - -

Other current Kabilities

Statutory dues payable 46.33 44.02

Total other current liabilities 46.33 44.02

Total other liabilities 46.33 44.02
22. Revenue from Opcrationé

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Rendering of services

From facility management services 1,846.35 1,681.88
Revenue from operations 1,846.35 1,681.88

The Company’s revenue is from rendering of services towards housekeeping, cleaning, facility operation & management services and has been recognized

over the period of time from the contracis with customers, Iocated in Indian geography.

The following table provides information about unbilled revenue from contract with customers

Partienlars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance 143.43 103.57
Transfers from unbilled revenue recognised at the beginning of the year to receivables (143.43) (103.57}
Increase due to revenue recognised during the year, excluding amounts billed during the year 140.49 143 43
Closing balance 140.49 143.43
23. Other income
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest income 3N 3.7
Total 391 3.71
23a, Other gain/(loss)
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
- [Other items 2.15 0.04
Total 215 0.04 {
4. Cost of materials-consumed. s 8 e e e
| P AU AT e e e e e —Murchr 315 2025 | March 3152024} —
Purchases of chemicals, consumables, and others 72.65 60.17
Uniforms and related inventories 8.73 045
Total 81.38 69.62
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25, Changes in inventory

Rare Hospitality and Services Private Limited

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Inventory at the beginming of the year 248 3.31
Inventory at the end of the year '0.27 2.48
Changes in inventory - (increase)/decrease 221 (.83

26. Empleyee benefits expense

(a) Employee costs include:
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 1,280.92 1,214.53
Contribution  providunt am other funds 143.12 141.13
Employee share-based payment expense * 0,02 0,67
Gratuity expense 2525 22,89
Leave compensation 40.71 39.48
Staff welfare expenses 5.20 4.44
Tetal 1,495.22 142314

*Certain employees of the Company have been granted share options issued by the parent, viz., SIS Limited (formerly known as Security & Intclligqnée

Service {India) Ltd.) The cost of such share options is charged to the Company by the parent and is reimbursed by the Company.

(b) Unfunded Scheme — leave obligations
Leave obligations cover the Company’s Hability for sick and eamed leave.

obligations.

Unfunded Schemes:

The provision for leave cbligations is presented as cusent, since the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of any of these

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Present value of unfunded obligations 16.62 17.76
Expenses to be recognized in the statement of profit and loss 40.71 39.48
Discount rate (per annum) 6.55% 7.15%
Indian Assured Lives| Indian Assured Lives
Mortality Mortality (2012-14)|  Mortality (2012-14)
Ult. Uit.
Salery escalation rate {per annum) 3.00% 8.00%

The liability for earned and sick leave is recognised and measured at the present value of the estimated fiture cash flows te be made in respect of non-billing
employees at the reporting date. In determining the present value of the liability, attrition rates and pay increases through promotion and inflation have been
taken into account.

(¢} Defined eontribotion plans
The Company has certain defined contribution plans.

""""""""""""" Contributions are made to provident fund for employees at the rate of 12% of the salary {subject to a limit of INR 15,000 salary per month) as perregulations.
The coatributions are made to a statutory provident fund administered by the Government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed
and it has no further contractual or constiuctive obligations in this regard.

Further, contributions are made in respect of Empioyees State Insurance Scheme, for specified emplayees, at he rate of 3.25% of the gross pay as per
,:egulahons The contributions are: towards med]cal benefits: provlded by the Guvemment to-the employees The- contnbutlous are. mmade. to-employees’state

- insurance-authoritics-administered-by-the jovel o]

or ConSiriictive obligations in this regard. LR A

~Contributions to provident fimd and employees’ state insurance scheme asre recognized as an expense as they become payable which coincides with the period
during which relevant employee services are received. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
[uture puyinents iy available.

Parficulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Expensc rccogmsed durmg the permd towards defined contribution plans 143.12 14113}
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(d) Defined benefits plans

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for a lump sum payment to eligible employees, at retirement or termmanon of
employment based on the last drawn salary and years of employment with the Company. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/ termination is the
employee’s last drawn basic salary per month cemputed proportionatety for 15 days salary maltiplied by the number of completed years of service, subject

to completion of five years of service and other conditions. Gratuity Plan is unfunded plan.

The following tables summarises the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of prof it or foss and the funded status and amounts

recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

Expenditure to be recognized during the year:

Particalars March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Current service cost 18.06 16.40
Interest cost 719 6.49
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 25,25 22.89
Remeasurements
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest income - -
Loss / {gain) from changes in financial assumptions 21% 0.15
Loss / (gain) from changes in demographic assurnptions (0.45) -
Expetience loss / (gain) (2.63) 1.04
Total loss / (gain) recognised in other comprehensive income {0.97) L19
Change in present value of defined benefit obligation is summarized below: ~
Reconciliztion of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of year 127.60 112.60
Current service cost 18.06 1640
Interest cost 7.1% 649
Remeasurements (0.97) 1.19
Benefits paid (6.77) {5.08)
Liabilitics assumed / {settled) 0.02 -
Defined benefit obligation af the end of year 145.13 127.60
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity and post-employment benefit obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:
Principal assumptions:
Principal actuarial assumptions March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate 6.55% 7.15%
Indian Assured Lives| Indian Assured Lives
Mortality Mertality (2012-14)]  Mortality (2012-14)
Ut Ult,
Future salary increase ]
- Non-billing / indirect employees 8.00% 8.00%
[~ Billing /direct employees 5.00% 5.00%
_|Attrition rate
.jBilling employees
A e TR LTS3 YEaTS e e L i 6009 52005
13130 — T YT
“f- 4150 38.00% 40.00%]
- 41 & abuve 35.00% 13.00%
Naon billing employees
- Age from 21-30 years 27.00% 24.00%
S RETPTE - oYY Sit—"
- 41-50 21.00% 24.00%
|- 51 & above 23.00% 11.00%
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A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

Assumptions . ) March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Disconnt rate

0.5% increase (1.21%) (1.19%)
0.5% decrease 1.24% 1.22%
Future salary increases

0.5% increase . 1.24% 1.22%
0.5% decreasce (1.22%) (1.20%)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and
changes in some of the assumptions may be ¢orrelated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions,
the same method (present value of the defined henefit ahligation calenlated with the prajected credit unit methed at the end of the reparting period) has heen
applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the previous vear.
Risk exposure
Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are market volatility, changes in inflation,

changes in interest rates, rising longevity, changing economic environment and regulatory changes.

Defined benefit liability and employer contributions
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

The weighted average duration of the post-employment benefit plan obligations (in years} : 2406 241

The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity benefits is as follows:

Maturity profile: March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Less than a year 59.78 54.08
Between 1-2 years 37.62 34.05
Between 2-5 years 53.83 47.03
Over 5 Years 21.83 19.20
Total , 173.06 ' 154.36

(e) The Code on Wages, 2019 and the Code on Social Security, 2020 have been notified through Gazette of India after assent of Honble President of India
which govemn, and are likely to impact, the contributions by the Company towards certain employee’s benefits. Notification of rules of these codes are
pending, The effective date of implementation of these Codes has not yet been notified and the Company will assess the impact of these codes as and when
they come into effect and will provide for the appropriate impact i its financial statements in: the peried in which, the Code becomes effective.

27. Finance costs

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Interest expense ' 27.54 ‘ 24.36
Interest oa lease liability (refer note 16) 19.61 3.27
Noter financecosts * . e esah
‘Total ) 48,37 28.57

" * Includes commitment charges, loan processing charges, guarantee charges, loan facilitation charges, other ancillary costs incurred in connection with

bm;mm]ngs ather than ﬁnance costs ];haT do not meet the definition of transaction ¢osts

28 Depreclatmn and amortization: expense
fpartiodiars LSS =>—— T e s | March 3L 308 |
Drepreciation on property, plant and equipment including ROU (Nate 4) : - 5538 28.37
Amortization of intangible assets (Note 5) 002 0.04

Total 55.40 - 28.41
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29, Other expenses

March 31, 2024

Particulars March 31, 2025
Training expenses 0.13 0.28
Fuel and lubricants 0.54 021
Other Dircet Operating Cost 3341 25,19
Selling expenses 0.01 0.85
Administrative expenses:
Travelling and conveyance 15.78 15.41
Postage and tclephone 0.93 0.67
Statiopary and printing 2,19 2,38
Rent * 8.54 5.43
Rates and taxes 0.62 0.68
Insurance 0.56 0.76
Repairs and maintenance:
- Machinery 3.33 - 4.34
- Others 6.15 2.81
Vehicle hire charges 342 3.24
Payments to auditors (Refer details below) 1.64 1.40
Legal and professional fees 12.60 17.26
Allowances for expected credit loss 2.00 6.75
Other administration and general expenses 32.83 22.38
Total 131.68 114.04
* Refer note 16.
Payment to Auditors
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
As auditor:
Statutory audit fees (including fees for limited review) 149 1.25
Tax audit fees 0.15 0.15
In other capacity:
Other services (cerlification fees) - -
1.64

Total payment to anditors

1.40

30. Earnings per share (EPS)

A reconciliation of profit for the year and equity shares used in the compuiation of basic and diluted earnings per equity share is set out below:

Particulars R March 31, 20625 March 31, 2024
4 Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company : '
. |Continuing operations 4316 3.43
77777777777777777777 Profit attributable to equity holdeis of the Conip:my for basic c:irnirfgs 343
~{Profitatiriby yequity holders-of the Company adjusted for 4316 343
Weighted average nurnber of equity shares for basic EPS (Numbers) 11,69,213 11,69,213
Effect of dilution:
Weighted average number of equity share-:ad}ustedfor .rhe. effec’r.nf‘ dihrtion 11,69,212 11,69,213
Nominal value of equity shares (INR) . 10.00 10.00
Earnings per share e D
|- Basic (INR) 36,91 293
293

3691

- Diluted (INR)
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31. Commitments and contingencics
(a) Capital commitments

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of capital advances) and not 710 1.06
provided for ) )

(b) Contingent liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt:

15.10 32.69
15.10 32.69

- Litigation matters with respect to dircet taxes

Total

Turing the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company reccived an intimetion under Section 143(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961, for the Asscssment Year 2020-
21, proposing a disallowance amounting to ¥37.59 million. The Company has filed an appeal against the said disaliowance with the Commissioner of lncome Tax
(Appeals).

During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company received a notice for the Assessment Year 2013-14 regarding the imposition of a penalty amounting to
¥2.38 million under Section 271(1)(c) of the Income-tax Act, 1961, for alleged concealment of income arising from a deemed sale consideration under Section
50C of the Act. The Company has filed an appeal against the penalty order with the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals).

The Company records a liability when it is both probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated. Significant judgment is
required to determine both probability and the estimated amount. The Company reviews these provisions periodically and adjusts these provisions accordingly to
reflect the impact of negotiations, settlements, rulings, advice of legal counsel, and updated information, The Company believes that the amount or estimable range
of reasonably possible loss, will not, either individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on its business, financial position, results of the Company,
or cash flows with respect to loss contingencies for legal and other contingencies as at March 31, 2025,

Disputed claims against the Company, including claims raised by the tax authorities and which are pending in appeal /court and for which no reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation, are not provided for in the accounts. However, the present obligation, if any, as a result of past events with a
possibility of cutflow of resources, when reliably estimable, is recognized in the accounts as an expense as and when such obiigation crystallises,

32. Events occurring after the Balance Sheet date
There were no significant events that occurred after the balance sheet date which would have any impact on the financial staternents.

33. Operating segment
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from operations 1,846.35 | - 1,681.88
Eamning hefore interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDAY* 135.86 74.25
* Excluding other income and other gain/{loss)
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Customers exceeding 10% of total revenue
Nu ul cuslomnery exeeeding 10%s of totat revenue 3 . 3
Total revenue of such customers 78.92 ' 67.26

- The Company is required to disclose segment information based on the “management approach’ as defined in Ind AS 108- Operating Segments, which in

how the Chief Operatmg Dec15:on Maker (CODM) evaluates the Company s perfonnance and allocates resources based on the analysm of the vanous
performance indicatn h M Fag

“-business of rendering fac111ty management services m Indla Accordmgly, thc Company is a smglc CGU, hcncc s:ngle segment Company ’I‘he mformamm T

CUAs rcqmrcd under Ind’ AS ‘108 is available’ dlrectlv from the fmanc:al statements; hence nao scparate dzsclosures have bccn made
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34. Related party transactions
Names of related parties

Holding

Fellow Subsidiaries

Key Management Personnel and their relatives

SIS Limited

Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited

Uniq Security Solutions Private Limited

Terminix SIS India Private Lirmited

SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions
Limited (formerly known as Service Master Clean

Limited)

One 518 Solutions Privae Lirsited

SIS Business Support Services and Sohations Private

Limited

SLV Security Services Private Limited

Mr. Dhiraj Singh - Director
Mr. Devesh Desai - Director

Mr. Brajesh Kusnar - Director
Mr. Edward Ambrose Dsouza - Director

Mr. Shumyher Puri - Direelor

The following table provides the iotal amount of transactions that have heen entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year.

Subsidiaries / Fellow

Holding company . Total
Particulars subsidiaries
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
Purchase of gc?ods / receiving of services / expenses reimbursed 11.2% 10.73 1743 .90 271 20,72
to related partics
Sale of g()Of[s / rendering of services / expenses reimbursed by 0.49 1.00 11.06 17.97 11.55 18.97
related parties
Rent paid 0.30 0.30 - - 030 0.30
Balances outstanding at end of the year
Halding company Subsadla::ne.s !_Fel!ow Total
. subsidiaries
Particulars
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
B T T 2025 _ 2024 | . .2025 2024 | 2025 | 0 2024
Tradz payables / other financial liabilities 1.86 0.96 1.2 212 515 3408
"|Trade receivables / other financial assets 0.03 0.29 1.06 2.7 1.09 } 3.00

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

~~The sales to and purchases from; related parties are made on normal commercial terms and; COndlth[lS and at’ market raies. Outstandmg balances at the

~year-end-zreansecured-and-carry-interestequivalent-ic- market rate;

i -itrterms of thetransactions; and-settlement-occurs-inrcash: For the—
year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has not recorded any :mpalrmcnt of reecivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (March 31, 2024:

hiere specificd,in

“"Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the refated party and the market in which the related

party operates,

There is ne allowance account for impaired receivables in relation to any outstanding balances, and no expense has been recognised in respect of impaired

receivables due from related parties.
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35. Financial risk management

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, and financial guarantee contracts. The main purpose
of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to provide guarantees to support the financing of the operaticns of its subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates, The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents that derive directly
from its operations, loans, security and other deposits.

The Company’s operations expose il to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s focus is to reduce volatility in financial statements while
maintaining balance between providing predictability in the Company’s busincss plan along with reasonable participation in market movement. It is the
Company s policy that ne trading in derivatives for specnlative purposes may be undertaken.

MEarket risk

Marhet risk s the risk that the fair valuc of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate bocause of changes in market prices. Market risk
mainly comprises currency risk and interest rate risk. Financial instruments affecred by market risk inctude Inans and horrowings, loans and depnﬂt‘a piven,
FVTOCI investments and derivative [inancial instrunerds.,

Foreign currency risk
Forcign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign cxchange rates which

arises from assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the respective entities and foreign currency revenue and
cash flows. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities
(when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency) and the Company’s net investments in foreign subsidiaries. The Company has limited
forcign currency transactions and has limited exposure to foreign currency assets and liabilities resulting in the forcign currency risk being low.

The exchange rate between the Indian Rupee and foreign currencies has fluctuated in recent years and may continue to do so in the future. Consequently,
the results of the Company’s operations may be affected as the Indian Rupee appreciates/depreciates against these currencies.

There are no foreign currency denominated financial assets and financial liabilities as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk primarily arises from Roating rate borowing, including various revolving and other lines of credit. Interest rate risk is the rigk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Variable rate borrowings:

- Loan repayble on demand 151.30 164.35
- Term koans 12,88 13.73
Fixed rate borrowings

« Vcehicle loan 3.06 1.70
Total 167.84 179.78

The Cowpany’s Tixed raw borrowings are carted al amortised cosl. They dre therefore nod subject 1 inferest rale visk gy defined in il-AS 107, since

neither the camrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest rates - increase by 25 basis points * 0.41 0.45
|Interest rates - dectease by 25 basis points *. ) 045

"‘T-To] dmg all’ other variablcs censtant -

- Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that counterparties may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed resulting in a financial loss. The primary
exposuze to credit risk arises frem Trade receivables and Unbilled revenue (refer note 11 & 7). These are unsecured and are managed by the Company
through a systen ol periodically assessing (e financial reliabilily of ceslomers, laking inle accound (he finsnctal condilion, currenl econvmic: remds, aod
analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivables. Two customers accounted for more than 10% of the accounts receivable as of March
31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: One customer). There is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Company uses the ECL method fo assess the loss

" allowance for Trade receivables and Unbilled revenue taking into account primarily the historical trends and analysis of bad debts. The Company doeésnot. "

expeet any credit risk or impairment in respect of amounts lent to its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, if any.

The credit risk for financial assets other than bank balances and trade receivables are considered low.,

Significant estimates and judgements
Tmpairment of financial assets
The impairment provision for financial assets disclosed above are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected luss rates. The Company uses

judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Company’s past history and existing market

conditions. The Company estimates loss arising on trade receivables as a percentage of sales based on past trends and such loss is directly debited to
revenue instead of ¢creating a provision for impairment of receivables.

Financial instruments and cash deposits
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with financial liabilities. The Company consistently
generates sufficient cash flows from operations and has access to multiple sources of funding 1o meet its financial obligations and maintain adequate

liquidity for use.

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafis, bank loans, debentures,

shareholder cquity, and finance leascs.

The below table summarises the Company’s long-term debt that will mature in less than one year based on the carrying value of borrowings reflected in

the financial statements.

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Company’s long-tenn: debt 16.54 15.43

Company’s Jong-term debt that will mature in less than one year from reporting period 6.89 10.21
41.66% 66.17%

The Company has assessed the concentration of tisk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has access to a sufficient
variety of sources of funding and significant portion of short-term debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders. The Company
believes that it has sufficient working capital and cash accruals to meet its business requirements and other obligations,

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial labilities based on contractual undiscounted payments,
Year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars On demand Less than 3 3 ¢o 12 months 1 to 5 years >3 years Total
months
‘|Borrowings 151.30 ] 216 6.47 8.50 - 168.42
Lease liability - 16.20 46.40 154.85 - 21745
Other financial liabilities - 172.38 - - - 172.38
Trade payables - 23.1¢ - - - 23.10
Year ended March 31, 2024
Particolars On demand Less than 3 3 to 12 months 1 to 5 years| = 5 years Total
months
Borrowings 164.35 243 T8 5.22 - 179.78
Lease Hability - 10.30 48.36 218.05 - 276.91
Other financial liabilities - 139.06 - - - 139.06
Trade payables - 29.12 - - - 29.12

Reconciliation of labilities whose cash flow movements are disclosed as part of financing activities in the statement of cash flows:
Year ended March 31, 2025

Asat April1, [ As at March 31,
Balance sheef caption 2024 Cash flow Finance cost Others W25
. |Borrowings* e o 1543 wrd o eoa| -] 1684}
Interest acerued ** - 0n (23.86) 23.87 - 402
1
Year ended March 31, 2024 _
. - . . " Asat April 1, As at March 31,
| Balanee shieef caption =5 T L e 20285 [ Casheflew s | - Finanee cost
| Betrowinigs # T e e VT et B
- {Interest accrued ** - (24.29) 25.30 (1.00) 0.01

* Aggregate of proceeds from term loans, Repayment of term loans.
** Interest paid

As a matter of policy, the Company does not carry out any hedging activities.
~"There have been no default in s.ervi.c;;n.g.bormwin.gs and/ or breaches in loan covenants:

The entity has the following financial assets which are subject to the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109. On assessment of the future cash flows
-arising from these assets, the Company believes that there is no provision required to be made for impairment losses on these assets.

March 31, 2025

Particulars March 31, 2024

Financial assets:
Other financial assets 203.40 | 163.66
Total 203.40 163.66
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36. Additional capital disclosures

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium, all other equity reserves attributable to the
equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise shareholder vaiue and support its strategies '
and operating requirements. The key objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a stable capital structure with a focus
on totat equity to uphotd investor, creditor, and customer confidence and to ensure future development of its business. The Company determines the capital
requirement based on annual operating plans and leng-term and other strategic investment plans, The funding requirements for the Company’s operations
are generally mct through operating cash flows gencrated and supplemented by long-term and working capital borrowings from banks.

The Company’s objectives when managing capltal are to:
a) safeguard its ability 1o continue as a going concem, so that it can continue to provide returns for sharekolders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
b) Maintain an optimal capital structure to optimise the cost of capital.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants to which it is subject. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment ta shareholders, raturn capital
1o shareholders or issue new shares, The Company monitors capital using a ratio, which is Net Debt divided by EBITDA. The Company defines Net Debt
as borrowings and leasc liabilities less cash and cash equivalents inctuding bank balances and deposits irrespective of their duration / maturity.

Particolars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Borrowings (Note 15} 167.84 175.78
Lease liability (Note 16) 185.11 223.03
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 12), other bank balances and depesits (including margin money) (51.43) {14.28)
Net Debt 301.52 388.53
EBITDA 135.86 74.25
Net debt to EBITDA ratio 2.22 5,23

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital manegement, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it simultaneously meets financial
covenants attached to its borrowings. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings, There
have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any borrowing in the current period.

37. Additional regulatory information
A) Financial ratios

Ratio Numerator Denominator March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 | % variance
Current Ratio Current asset Current Habilities 1.08 1.06 2.05%
Debt-Equity Ratio ' Total debt Sharcholders' equity 0385 1.19 -28.64%,
Debt Service Coverage Ratio ! Earming befor interest and taxes Drebit service * 272 1.37 98.85%
Return on Equity Ratio ' Net profits after taxes Average shareholders' equity 24.75% 2.35% 851.72%
Trade Receivables turnover ratio Revenue from operations Avgrage trade receivables 540 4.99 8.09%,
Inveniory tumover ratio 2 Cost of goods sold Average inveatory 60.89 24,30 150.57%,
Trade payables turnover ratie Cost of goods sold Average trade payables 3.20 2.67 19.73%
Net capital tumover ratio Revenue from operations Working capital 5145 47.40 -23.66%
Net profit ratio ' Net profits after taxes Revenue from operations 2.34% 0.21% 1026.72%
Return on Capital employed ! Earning befor interest and taxes Capital employed ** 15.49% 10.49% 47.71%
Heturn on investment The Company bas no return on investment, hence Return on Investment ratiof - -
has not been disclosed

1. The eflect of better working capital management and higher net profit on account of change in depreciation method and tax benefits have resufted in

~ variance in ratios.

2. The effect of higher material cost on account of increased revenue durmg the year.

* Debt service = Iterest expmlse + current malturilies ol long—lex 'm debl
s Capitalemployed:=Total-equity-+Netdebt = T

B) The disclosures required under Division I of Schedule TIT have been given to the extent applicable to the Company. -
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